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Independent Auditor's Repart

To the Members of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

T

a We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the back-up of the books of
account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has not been kept on servers
physically located in India on a daily basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(B)(f)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31
March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company , none of the directors of
the Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 15 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

g

the Note 26 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 26 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report(Continued)

Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility. However, due to the inherent limitation of the application configuration, we are unable to
comment whether the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software and whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been
tampered with.

Additionally, due to the inherent limitation in the configuration of the software in the previous
year, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of theAct:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's RegistrationNo.:101248W/W-100022

Ratine W

Pratima Narang

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 226898
Date: 08 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25226898BMRKKY 3409
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

@ (b)

©
@

©

@i (a)

(b)

(i)

)

v)

()

P

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, all property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
The management is in the process of reconciling the physical verification report to the fixed
asset register. Hence, we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any noticed on such
verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering logistics and mailroom management
solutions. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii){f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(viil)

) (a)

T

provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs.
or Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Empioyees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Due date Date of
statute dues (INR which the payme
Miliions) amount nt
relates
| Labour  Welfare | Dues relating to | 9.60 FY 2012-13 | Various Not
fund, 1965 salary and to FY 2019- | dates paid |
bonus payable 20
to | |
employee | |

unpaid greater |
than 3 years to
be transferred

to Labour

Welfare fund
The  Employees | Provident Fund | 2.83* Various Not
Provident  funds FY 2007-08 | dates paid
and Miscellaneous to FY 2011-
Provisions Act, 12
1952

*Excludes interest

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

®)
©
@
®©
®
) ()
(b)

i) (a)

®)
©

)

(o)

(dv) (a)

(b)

T

borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company has
not obtained term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (
as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is
not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined
in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a
vigil mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited Company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company
does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as
per Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(o) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(i) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

© The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the
requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(vii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(wiil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(00 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Prasiona Vo2

Pratima Narang

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 226898
Date: 08 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25226898BMRKKY 3409
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A){(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Avon Solutions
and Logistics Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internai Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controis that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

'P\MKNW

Pratima Narang

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No.: 226898
Date: 08 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25226898BMRKKY 3409
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Al umounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

. As at As at
Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 3.94 448
Other Intangible assets 3(b) 0.27 047
Right-of-use assets 4 (a) 36.14 36.16
Financial assets
- Other financial assets 5 14.06 27.85
Other tax assets, net 6 6.46 31.78
Deferred tax assets, net 17 22.32 19.74
Total non-current assets 83.19 120.48
Current assets
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 8 383.05 205.82
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 (a) 0.15 0.32
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9 (b) 10.00 -
- Other financial assets 5 40.78 77.02
Other current assets 7 18.98 51.28
Total current assets 452.96 334.44
Total assets 536.15 454.92
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 248 248
Other equity 10 247.29 201.66
Total equity 249.77 204.14
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Lease liabilities 4 (b) 28.41 26.42
Provisions 12 32.43 27.22
Total non-current liabilities 60.84 53.64
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 11 25.66 13.38
- Lease liabilities 4 (b) 10.21 10.04
- Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises: and 13 1.45 1.65
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 13 99.59 86.42
- Other financial liabilities 14 43.09 40.31
Other current liabilities 15 28.88 27.63
Provisions 12 16.66 17.71
Total current liabilities 225.54 197.14
Total liabilities 286.38 250.78
Total equity and liabilities 536.15 454.92
Material accounting policies I and 2
The notes from | to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR& Co. LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Churtered Accountants Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Firm's Registration no. 101248W/W-100022 CIN : U72200TN2002PTC049961
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Date: May 08. 2025 Date: May 08. 2025 Date: May 08. 2025



Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended march 31, 2025
(Al umounts are in millions of Indiun Rupees. except share data and us stated)

Year ended Y ear ended
Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 18 1.036.65 70945
Other income 19 5.29 10.08
Total income 1,041.94 719.53
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 329.07 238.30
Finance costs 21 5.67 5.84
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 17.11 13.70
Clearing and freight forwarding charges 23 104.66 227.35
Other expenses 24 221.24 171.39
Total expenses 977.75 656.58
Profit before tax 64.19 62.95
Tax expense:
Current tax
-tax relating to current years 17 17.95 7.30
-tax relating to earlier years 17 1.57 6.39
Deferred tax 17 (2.17) 9.15
Total tax expense 17.35 23.04
Profit for the year 46.84 39.91
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- - Re-measurement (loss)/ gains on defined benetit plans 17 (1.62) (+.28)
- Income tax etfect on above 17 041 1.08
Total other comprehensive income (1.21) (3.20)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 45.63 36.71
Earnings per equity share
(Face value of equity shares of Rs. 100/- each)
Basic and Diluted carnings per share (in Rs.) 23 1.885.29 1.606.52
Material accounting policies 1 and 2
The notes from 1 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Jor BSR& Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Bourd of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Firm's Registration no. 101248 W/W-100022 CIN : U72200TN2002PTC049961
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
Al amounts are in millions of Indiun Rupees. except share data und as stated)

Note Year ended Year ended

= = March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
A, Cash flows from operatingactivities -
Profit before tax 64.19 62.95
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property. plant and equipment and amortization of Intangible assets 22 2.16 222
Depreciation of right of use of assets 22 14.95 11.48
Finance costs 21 5.67 5.84
Allowance/(Reversal) of expected credit loss 343 347
Interest income (3.39) (9.3
L.oss / (gain) on disposal of property. plant and equipment' 0.01 0.20
Operating profit before working capital changes 87.02 76.85
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (180.66) (91.45)
(Increase) in other financial assets (0.63) (0.30)
(Increase) in other assets 3230 (43.49)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 12.97 69.05
(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 2.78 (41.64)
Increase in current liabilities and provisions 3.80 5.54
Cash generated used in from operating activities (42.42) (25.44)
Income taxes received. net 5.80 (11.81)
Net cash used in from operating activities (36.62) (37.25)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property. plant and equipment (1.42) (2.94)
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment - 0.03
Interest received 4.67 12.85
Loans to fellow subsidiaries - (10.00)
Maturity of / (Investment) in Bank deposits, net 39.00 120.62
Net cash generated from investing activities 42.25 120.57
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid - (86.64)
Proceeds from borrowings - 13.38
Repayment of borrowings (13.38) -
Payment of principal portion of lease labilities (12.40) (9.40)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities (4.23) (2.56)
Finance cost paid (1.42) (3.28)
Net cash from financing activities (31.46) (88.50)
D. Net cash flows during the year (A + B + () (25.83) (5.18)
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 0.32 5.50
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D + E) (25.51) 0.32
Cash on hand - 0.00
Balances with banks in current accounts 15 0.32
Bank overdrafts (secured) (25.66 -
Cash and cash equivalents as per note 9 (25.51) 0.32
Material accounting policies land 2
The notes from 1 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR& Co. LLP tor und on hehalf of the Board of Directors of’
Chartered Accountants Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Firm's registration number: 101248W, W-100022 CIN U72200TN2002PTCO49961
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in millions of Indiun Rupees. except share data and as stuted)

A. Equity share capital Note Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2024 10 2.48
Chanees in eyuity share capital due to prior period errors =
Restated balance as at April 1, 2024 2.48
Changes in equity share capital during the vear -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 10 2.48
Balance as at April 1, 2023 10 2.48
Changes in eyuity share capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 2.48
Changes in equity share capital during the vear -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 10 2.48
B. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars General 5 apl_tal Retained Share options Total
redemption . .
reserve earnings| outstanding account
reserve

Balances as at April 1, 2024 26.60 0.40 174.65 - 201.66
Profit for the year - - 16.84 - 46.84
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (1.21) - (1.21)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 45.63 45.63
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Employee stock options provided (Refer Note 31) - - - 1.46 1.46
hmployee S.ka options costs payable to holding Company ] ) i (1.46)! (1.46)
(refer note 31) |
Total transactions with the owners of the Company - - - - -
Balances as at March 31, 2025 26.60 0.40 | 220.28 - 247.29
Balances as at April 1, 2023 26.60 0.40 274.59 - 301.59
Profit for the year - - 3991 - 3991
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (3.20) - (3.20)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 36.71 36.71
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Dividend Paid (Refer Note 10B) - - (136.64) . (136.64)
Employee stock options provided (Refer Note 31) - - - 1.93 1.93
Em?loyee itock options costs payable to holding Company ) ) ) (1.93) (1.93)
(refer note 31)
Total transactions with the owners of the Company - - (136.64) - (136.64)
Balances as at March 31, 2024 26.60 0.40 174.65 - 201.66
Material accounting policies 1 and 2
The notes from | to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Jfor BSR& Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Firm's registration number: 101248W-W-100022 CIN UT72200TN2002PTCO49961
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

1. Corporate information

Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on December 2. 2002. The Company is a private company
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companics Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company
is located at Balammal Building, No. 33. Ist Floor. Burkit Road. T. Nagar. Chennai — 600017. The Company is primarily into rendering
integrated mailroom management solutions across diverse industries such as banking. insurance, consultancy. technology. and
manufacturing. The Company is engaged in providing Mailroom operations, mail logistics, freight & logistics and pickup & delivery
services. The Company is a subsidiary ot Updater Services Limited.

1A. Basis of preparation
1.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS’) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2025 (including comparative figures) are authorised by the Board on May 08, 2025.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in note 2.

1.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the Company s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded
to the nearest millions. unless otherwise indicated.

1.3 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items _Measurement basis -
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value -
Net defined benefit asset/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit oblizations |
Lease liability Present value of remaining lease payments discounted using the lessee’s incremental
_ borrowing rate at the date of initial application ]
| Right to Use Asset Amount equal to the lease liability. adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued |

lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately
before the date of initial application

1.4 Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements. management has made judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant etfects on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 2(4) and 4(b) : Leases - whether an arrangement contains a lease;

- Note 2(4) and 4(b) : Lease term : whether the company is reasonably certain to exercise the extension option
- Note 2(3) and 29: Financial instruments: Classification and measurement.

- Note 2(3) and 17 : Provision for Income Taxes. uncertain tax treatments.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainty

[nformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have the most significant etfect on recognition and
measurement of assets. liabilities. income and expenses is mentioned below :-

- Note 2(2) and 2(3): Uscful lives of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets:

- Note 2(7) and 17 — Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit :

- Note 2(6): Impairment test on financial and non-financial assets; key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts:

- Note 2(7). 2(9). 17 and 32: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood
and magnitude of an outflow of resources: and

- Note 2(6) and 8 : Measurement of ECL allowances for Trade receivables : Key assumptions in determining the weighted average
loss rate and

- Note 2(8) and 13: measurement of defined benefit obligation: key actuarial assumptions.
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

1.5 Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair vatues. This includes personnel responsible
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements. including Level 3 fair values. and reports directly to the chief operating officer.

Such personnel regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. [f third party information, such as broker
quotes or pricing services. is used to measure fair values, then such personnel assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of the Accounting Standards. including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classitied.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s Board of Directors.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. The inputs used to
measure the fair value of assets or liabilities fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. Accordingly. the fair value measurement
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Management uses various valuation techniques to determine fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not
available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.
Management based on its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but where it not available, the management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date (also refer notes). The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

1.6 Current and non-current classification
The Company classities an asset as current asset when:

- it expects to realise the asset. or intends to sell or consume it. in its normal operating cycle:

- it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading:

- it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period: or

- the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classitied as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when —

- it expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;

- it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading:

- the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

- it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of
a liability that could. at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The
Company s normal operating cycle is twelve months.




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

2. Summary of material accounting policies

These tinancial statements have been prepared applying material accounting policies and measurement bases summarized below.

2.

Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenue primarily trom mailroom management, courier services and freight and logistic services.

The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies performance obligations under the terms of its contracts. and control of its services
is transferred to its customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive from its customers in
exchange for those services. This process involves identifying the customer contract, determining the performance obligations in the
contract, determining the contract price. allocating the contract price to the distinct performance obligations in the contract. and
recognizing revenue. when the performance obligations have been satisfied.

Taxes assessed by a government authority that are both imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue-producing transaction.
that are collected by the Company from a customer. are excluded from Revenue from operations.

Revenue from Mailroom management services .business support services and warchousing revenue is recognised over time as the
services are provided as customers simultancously receives and consumes the benefits as and when the services are provided.

Revenue from courier services and freight and logistic services are recognised at the point of time at which the Company transfers
control of the goods and services to the customer. An entity has “control” of a service when it has the ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the services.

Other Income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate.
Interest income is included under the head ~other income™ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The -effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset: or
- the amortized cost of the tinancial liability

Property, plant and equipment
2.1 Recognition and measurement

The cost of an item of property. plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if. and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other items of property. plant and equipment (including capital-work-in progress) are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

After initial recognition, subsequent measurement of freehold land is at its fair value as at each balance sheet date. Any revaluation
surplus is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss. in which case the increase is
recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing
surplus on the same asset carried in the revaluation reserve.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

»  purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable taxes on purchase (goods and service tax, value added tax). after
deducting trade discounts and rebates.

>  any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use. estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

» The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour. any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use. and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Any gain/ loss on disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment except for frechold land is recognised in statement of profit
and loss.
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees. except share data and as stated)
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Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The component of assets are capitalized only if the life of the components vary significantly and whose cost is significant in
relation to the cost of the respective asset, the life of the component in assets are determined based on technical assessment and
past history of replacement of such components in the assets. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as separate
asset is derecognised when replaced.

2.2 Depreciation:
a. Depreciation is calculated on the cost of items of property. plant and equipment less their estimated residual values. It is
recognized on a straight-line basis. over useful life of buildings and other equipment as prescribed under Schedule 11 of
Companies Act, 2013.

b. Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset or part of the asset as
evaluated on technical assessment and in accordance with Part A of Schedule [l to the Companies Act, 2013, on a straight-line
basis.

¢. The estimated useful life of the property. plant and equipment on technical assessment followed by the Company is furnished
below:

; Management estimate of useful life | Useful life as per Schedule LI (in
Asset category

| | (in years) | years)

Office Equipment 5 | 5 N
| Furniture and fixtures 10 10 -
~ Computer and accessories 13 | 3-6

d. Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted. if necessary. for
each reporting period.

¢. On property. plant and equipment added/ (disposed) off during the year. depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis from/ (up to)
the date on which asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently. such intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates. All other expenditure. including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands. is recognised in statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

Amortisation of Intangible assets is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 3 years and is generally recognised in depreciation and amortisation in
Statement of profit and loss. Amortisation method. usetul lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if necessary. for each reporting period.

Leases

At inception of a contract. the Company assesses whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. A contract is. or contains. a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

4.1 Assets held under leases

Assets taken on lease
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date. plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located. less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the
lease term. unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost

Co,
— ((:o ~of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be

\ *"- depreciated over the usetul life of the underlying asset. which is determined on the same basis as those of property. plant and
@ cquipment. In addition. the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses. it any. and adjusted for certain

' & remeasurements of the lease liability. o
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

4.2

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from external financing sources that reflects
the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

[Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the tfollowing:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement
date:

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee: and

- exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option. and penalties for early termination of
a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate. if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase. extension or termination option or if there is a revised in —substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way. a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset. or is recorded in the statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero. The Company presents right-of-use assets and lease labilities separately on the face of the balance sheet.

Short-term leases

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases. The Company recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

5. Financial instruments

5.1

Recognition and initial measurement:

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured
at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit and foss (FVTPL). transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

3.2 Financial assets

%

5.2.1 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified and measured based on the entity’s business model for
managing financial assct and contractual cash flow characteristics of financial asset at:

a. Those measured at amortised cost.

b. Those to be measured at Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

c. Those to be measured at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

a. Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.
e  assets that are held within a business model where objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash
flows: and
e  contractual terms gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding.

These assets are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

b. Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’)
Financial assets is measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

e  asscts that are held within a business model where objective is both collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financ al assets: dll(l
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of [ndian Rupees, except share data and as stated)
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e contractual terms giving rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading. the Company may irrevocably elect to represent
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCL. This election is to be made on an investment-by-investment basis.

¢. Financial assets at Fair Value Through profit and loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition. the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured al amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and the information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest. maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration
of financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of
assets:

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how
those risks are managed:

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g.. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or
the contractual cash flows collected: and

- the frequency. volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods. the reasons for such sales and expectations about
future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this
purpose. consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on fair value basis are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment. "principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Interest” is
defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during
a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs). as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the coniractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In

making this assessment. the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate. including variable interest rate features:

- prepayment and extension features: and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally. for a financial asset acquired at a significant
discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that pertains or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is
insignificant at initial recognition.
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6.

"8 Co,

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses (continued)

Financial assets at FI'TPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income. are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at F1°OCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

5.3 Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading. or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses. including any interest expense. are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

5.4 De-recognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire. or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transterred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.
[f the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. the transterred assets are not derecognised.
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire. The
Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case. a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

5.5 Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when. and only when. the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment
6.1 Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognise loss allowance for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At cach reporting date. the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial assct
is ~credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash tlows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial ditficulty:

a breach of contract such as a default or being past due:

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise:
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation: or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

[ u=5 allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit

bssts are credit losses that result from all possible default events over expected life of finpsetsi

jstrument.
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
expected credit losses. the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis. based on the Company s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is past due
6.1 Impairment of financial instruments
The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the recipient is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full. without recourse by the Company to actions such as
realising security (if any is held): or
- the financial asset is past due.

6.1.1 Measurement of expected credit losses

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of outcomes. taking
into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events. current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

As a practical expedient. the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The
provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date. the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are updated.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss under the head ~Other expenses

6.1.2 Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

6.1.3 Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off. However. financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Companys procedures for recovery of amounts due.

6.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company s non-financial assets. other than deferred tax assets. are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing. assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs).
Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows. discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU if any. and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods. the Company reviews at each reporting date

whether there is any indication that loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
estimates used to determine recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to an extent that asset’s carrying amount does not exceed

*
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

7 Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to
a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes. including uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the
definition of income taxes. and therefore accounted for them under Ind AS 37 Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates in
accordance with tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and
it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary difference between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax
losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction:

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries. associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future:
and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Temporary differences in relation to a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for a specific lease are regarded as a net package (the lease)
for the purpose of recognising deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the
reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits. adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences. are considered. based on the
business plans of the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised: such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date. to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilitics and /assets. and they
relate to income taxes levied by same tax authority on same taxable entity, or on different tax entities. but they intend to settle such tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or its tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultanecously

8 Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits

8.1 Short term employee benefit obligations:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g.. under short-term bonus. if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee. and the amount of obligation can be
estimated reliably.

8.2  Post-employment obligation:
8.2.1 Defined benefit plans:

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in
respect of defined benetit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When

the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company. the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits

RO available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (“the asset ceiling”). In order
Q’)f.,?‘ Co, é\_calculatc the present value of economic benelits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

(*/ Rgmeasurements of the net defined benefit liability. which comprise actuarial gains and losses. the return on plan assets (excluding

' ihtgrest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any. excluding interest). are recognised immediately in OCL The Company determines

-"rl;é'" et interest expense {income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period przdpptuing the discount rate used to measure
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

Defined benefit plans (continued):

the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset). taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the beneits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (“past
service cost” or “past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan"). covering eligible employees. the Plan
provides payment to vested employees at retirement, death, or termination of employment. of an amount based on the respective
employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Company. The Company provides the gratuity benefit through annual
contribution to a fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Such contributions are determined by LIC based on
actuarial valuation using "projected unit credit method” as at the balance sheet date.

Compensated absences: The Company has a policy under which un-availed leave of their employees is allowed to be accumulated
within certain limits and allowed to be availed during the employment period or en-cashed at the time of the employees' separation on
the basis of their last drawn salary. The Company accounts for its liability towards compensated absences based on actuarial valuation
done as at the year-end by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements gain or losses are recognised
in statement of profit and loss in the period which they arise.

8.2.2 Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

8.3  Other long-term employee benefit obligations:

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benetits other than post-employment benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods: that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

8.4 Share Based Payments

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to employees is generally recognised as an employee
benetfits expense. with a corresponding increase in equity. over the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met.
such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance
conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based
payment is measured to retlect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified. the minimum expense recognised by the Group is the grant date fair value of
the unmoditied award. provided the vesting conditions (other than a market condition) specified on grant date of the award are met.

Further. additional expense. if any. is measured and recognised as at the date of modification. in case such modification increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment plan or is otherwise beneficial to the employee.

The company is covered under the employee stock option scheme of Updater Services Limited. [ndia (the Holding company). Under the
plan. the employees of the company are granted shares of the holding company. in accordance with the terms and conditions as specified
in the plan. The plan is assessed. managed, and administered by the holding company, whose shares and share based benefits have been
granted to the employees of the Company. The holding company currently operates the plan/ scheme of employee stock option ("ESOP™).
The company has accounted for expenses under Ind As 102 considering the invoice received from the holding company and has made the
related disclosures required under Ind As 102 based on information obtained from the holding company. (Refer Note 31)

5. A
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10.

I1.

12.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

9.1 Provisions:

A provision is recognised if. as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably. and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Expected future operating
Josses are not provided for. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost.

9.1.1 Onerous contract

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower
than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before
such a provision is made. the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

9.2 Contingent liabilities:

Whenever there is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises
from past events but is not recognised because (a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation: or (b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are considered as
contingent liability. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders. share split and reverse
share split (consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are considered for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share. only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or
increases loss per share are included.

Cash and cash equivalents and cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. together with other short-term, highly liquid investments
maturing within three months from the date of acquisition and which are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to only an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is appropriately classified
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future receipts or payments. In cash flow
statement. cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand. balances with banks in current accounts and other short- term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chicf Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments
of the Company. For disclosure on reportable segments see Note 33.
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3 (a) Property, plant and equipment

o . Office Computer Furniture and -

Reconciliation of carrying amounts . and Total
Equipment k fixtures
accessories
Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2023 2.71 4.38 2.33 9,42
Additions 1.32 0.34 1.06 2.72
Disposals (0.16) (0.36) (0.52) (1.04)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.87 4.36 2.87 11.10
Additions 0.37 0.81 0.04 1.22
Disposals/ Write-otf (0.01) 0.21) 10.03) (0.26)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 4.22 4.96 2.88 12.06
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 1.88 2.70 1.17 575
Depreciation 0.44 0.97 0.27 1.68
Disposals (0.16) (0.35) (0.30) (0.81)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.16 3.32 1.14 6.62
Depreciation 0.35 0.89 0.31 1.75
Disposals/ Write-off (0.01) (0.21) (0.02) (0.25)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2.70 4.00 1.42 8.12
Carrving amounts
As at March 31, 2024 1.71 1.04 1.73 4.48
As at March 31, 2025 1.53 0.96 1.45 3.94
3 (b) Intangible assets
Particulars (??mputer Total
Software

Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2023 .79 .79
Additions 0.23 23
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.02 3.02
Additions 0.20 0.20
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 3.23 3.22
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 2.01 2.01
Depreciation 0.54 0.54
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.55 2.55
Depreciation 0.41 0.41
Disposals - =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2.96 2.96
Carrying amounts
As at March 31, 2024 0.47 0.47
As at March 31, 2025 See Accounting Policy No 2 (2) 0.27 0.27

Notes:

1. There are no assets pledged for borrowings.

3. The Company does not have any immovable property

3. The Company does not have Capital Work in Progress and hence reporting for Overdue projects are not applicable to the Company

This Spuce has been left blunk intentionally

S fo

/)




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts ure in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

4 (a) Right of use assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Building Total
Cost:
Balance as at April 1, 2023 7.59 7.59
Additions 4219 42.19
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 49.78 49.78
Additions 14.93 14.93
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 64.71 64.71
Accumulated Depreciation: Buildings Total
Balance as at April 1, 2023 2.14 2.14
Depreciation 11.48 11.48
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 13.62 13.62
Depreciation 14.95 14.95
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 28.57 28.57
Carrying amounts
As at March 31, 2024 36.16 36.16
As at March 31, 2025 36.14 36.14
4 (b) Lease liabilities As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
(i) Maturity analysis - Contracted undiscounted cashflows
L.ess than one vear 16.56 13.26
One to five years 28.29 30.94
More than five years - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 44.84 44.20
Lease liabilities
Non-Current 2841 2642
Current 10.21 10.04
38.63 10.04
Year ended Year ended
(ii} Reconciliation of Movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 36.46 347
Additions during the vear 14.57 40.39
Interest on lease liabilities 4.25 2.56
Rental payments (160.65) (11.96)
As at end of the vear 38.63 36.46
Year ended Year ended
(iii) Amounts recognized in profit or loss March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease labilities (refer note 21) 4.25 2.56
Depreciation of right of use assets (refer note 229 14.95 11.48
Expenses relating to short-term leases 144 1.54
(iv) Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows
Total cash outtlow towards lease payments texcluding short-term leases) 16.65 9.4

Notes:

The Company has lease contracts for building used in its operations. Leases of building generally have lease terms between 2-6 vears. The Company s obligations

under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

The Company also has certain leases of building and warchouses with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the “short-term lease” and “lease of low-

value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.
o T . .
«_ The-diselosures have been made pursuant to Ind AS 116 requirements
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5  Otherfi ial assets As at As at
; erTinAnclat assets March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non- current
(Unsecured and considered good. unless otherise stuted)
Security deposits 6.06 476
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- in long-term deposits with original maturity more than 12 months * 7.00 20.80
Interest accrued 1.00 228
Other Deposits - 0.01
14.06 27.85
Current As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
tUnsecured und considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 298 +4.02
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- in long-term deposits with original maturity more than 12 months * 37.80 73.00
40.78 77.02
*Includes fixed deposits under lien of INR 33.5 Million with banks which is earmarked against overdraft.
6  Other tax assets, net
Advance tax. net of provision 6.46 31.78
6.46 31.78
7  Other assets
(U nsecured considered good)
Prepaid expenses 215 1.76
Balance with government authorities 7.94 5.51
Other advances 0.00 0.01
Advances to suppliers 8.88 44.00
18.98 51.28
8 Trade receivables As at As at

Trade receivables considered good - Secured

_March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 383.04 205.82
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables- credit 9.17 6.79
Total trade receivables 392.21 212.60
Loss allowance (9.17) (6.79)
Net trade receivables 383.05 205.82
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:-
Total trade receivables from related parties (refer note 30) 1.65 247
Less: Loss allowance = -
1.65 247
Year ended Year ended
. '\ . H 33 6 o R 3
B. Movement in loss allowance on trade receivables March 31,2025 VMarch 31, 2024
Opening balance 6.79 332
Loss allowance made during the year 343 347
Loss allowance reversed during the year - -
Amount written off (1.05) -
Closing balance 9.17 6.79
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(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share datu und us stuted)

8 Trade receivables (continued)
(.. Ageing schedule of trade receivables:

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the invoice date
Unbilled and Less than 6 6 months - More than -
. 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
ot due months I vear : - 3 vears E

Undisputed trade receivables

(i) Considered good 85.05 237.09 40.09 .59 0.23 - 383.05
(1) Which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk

(iii) Credit impaired 2.08 346 1.33 011 - - 9.17
Disputed trade receivables
(i) Considered good - - - - - - -
(it) Which have signitficant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
(iit) Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 87.13 262.55 41.61 0.70 0.23 - 392.22
L.ess : Loss allowance - - - - - - AN
Net trade receivables 87.13 262.55 41.61 0.70 0.23 - 383.05
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the invoice date

L'nbilled and Less than 6 6 months - More than .

. 1-2 yvears 2-3 vears Total
Not due months 1 year - 3 years

Undisputed Trade

(i) Considered good 90.87 113.71 1.03 0.21 - - 205.82
(11) Which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk

(iii) Credit impaired 144 1.82 0.62 0.21 - 270 6.80

Disputed Trade receivables

(i) Considered good - - - - - - -
(ii) Which have significant - - - - - - _
increase in credit rish

(1i1) Credit impaired - - - - - - R

Total 92.31 115.53 1.65 0.42 - 2.70 212.62
Less : Loss allowance - - - - - - - (6.79
Net trade receivables 92.31 115.53 1.65 0.42 - 2.70 205.82
Notes:

i} No trade recei ables or other receivables are due from directors or officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
i) Information about the Company's exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in Note 29
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

9 (a) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- On current account 0.13 0.32
-Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - -
Cash on hand - 0.00

Cash and cash equivalents in Balance Sheet 0.15 0.32

Bank overdrafts repasable on demand and used for cash management purposes (25.66) -

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows (25.5D) 0.32
9 (b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months® ] 10.00 -

Total bank balance vther than cash and cash equivalents 10.00 -

Notes:
1) Information about the Company’s exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in Note 29




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupecs. except share data and as stated)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
10 Share capital and other equity
A Equity Share Capital
Authorised
30.000 (March 31.2024: 30.000) equity shares of INR 100 each 3.00 3.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
24.845 (March 31. 2024: 24.845) equity shares of INR 100 each fully paid up 248 248
~ AsatMarch 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end
Equity shares
At the commencement and end of the year 24.845 2.48 24.845 248
Add: Shares issued during the vear - -
Less: Buyback during the year - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year - -
24,845 2.48 24,845 2,48

el

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly. all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s
residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not
on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on

which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

On winding up of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company. remaining after distribution of

all preferential amounts. in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

b) Shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company,
their subsidiaries and associates

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Equity shares No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Updater Services Limited (Holding Company ) A
. S 3 . 18. 1.89
(Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each. fully paid up) 18.883 189 8.883
18,883 1.89 18,883 1.89
¢) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the o
- As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024
Name of shareholder No of shares % of holding No of shares % of holding
Equity shares
Updater Services Limited 18.883 76.00% 18.883 76.00%
Latha Krishna Kumar 5.962 24.00% 5.962 24.00%
d) Shareholding of promoters
Name of the promoter - No. of N % of change

% of total sh:
shares held % of total shares

during the year

Equity shares

As at March 31, 2025
Updater Services Limited
[.atha Krishna Kumar

As at March 31, 2024
Updater Services Limited
Latha Krishna Kumar

18.883 76%
5962 710,
18.883 76%
5962 249,

0%
0%

0%
0%

e) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during a period of five years

immediately preceding the reporting date:

Particulars March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Mareh 31, 2020

shares bought back by the Company -
E qu;t\ shares alloted as tully paid bonus shares by -
uapxtalls_atlon of securities premium

f Emplm ee stock options/ share purchase plan

- 4000

- - W\~

Terms attached to stock options granted/ share purchase plan to employees are described in Note 31 regarding share-based payments

oot



Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al umounts are in millions of Indiun Rupees. except share duta and as stated)

10 Share capital and other equity (continued)

10

h)

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management. capital (total equity)lincludes issued equity capital. securities premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the sharcholder

value. Management monitors the return on capital. as well as the level of dividends to ordinary sharcholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders. return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio. which is net debt divided by adjusted equity. Net debt is calculated as total
liabilities (as shown in the balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity
other than amounts accumulated in the hedging and cost of hedging. The Company s net debt to adjusted equity ratio i.e. capital gearing ratio are as

follows:

Total labilities
Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

Net debt A

Total equity

Equity B

Net debt to equity C=(AB*I00
* Total debt represents current borrowings and lease liabilities

Other Equity

General Reserve i
Capital redemption reserve it
Retained earnings 1ii

Share options outstanding account v

. Movement in Reserves and surplus

General Reserve

Opening balance

Transter from retained carnings
Closing halance

Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance

Transter from retained earnings
Closing balance

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income for the vear
Dividend paid

Closing balance

* Share options outstanding account

Opening balance

Employee stock options provided

Emplovee stock options costs payable to holding Company
Closing balance

As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
64.28 49 84
(10.15) (0.32)
54.13 49.52
22424 20414
224.24 204.14
24.14% 24.26%
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
26.60 26.60
040 0.40
220.28 174.65
247.28 201.65
26.60 26.60
26.60 26.60
0.40 0.40
0.40 0.40
174.65 274.59
46 84 3991
(12D (3.20)
- (136.64)
220.28 174.65
146 1.93
(1.46) (1.93)




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indiun Rupees. except share data and as stated)

B. Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date. less any transfers to general reserve. dividends or other distributions paid to
General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with
applicable regulations. The purpose of these transters was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of
the Company for that vear. then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of
Companies Act 2013 the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However. the
amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specitic requirements of Companies Act. 2013.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve is a non-distributable reserve created in an earlier year. This reserve will be utilized in accordance with provisions of Companies
Act. 2013,

Securities Premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.

C. Dividends As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

The Following dividends were declared and paid by the Company during the year

Interim dividend of Rs 5.500/- per equity share in the respective vears - 136.64
- B 136.64
Particulars As at As at
arfiewtars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Dividend paid to
Latha Krishna Kumar - 32.79
Updater Services Limited - 103.84
less dividend pavable adjusted towards loan advanced to Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited - (50.00)
Net dividend paid to Updater Services Limited (Holding Company) - 53.84
Total cash flow of dividend paid - 86.64

There are no proposed dividends for the year ended March 31. 2025 and March 31. 2024,
D. Analysis of items of OCI {net of tax)

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans is credited on account of remeasurement gains of defined benefit obligations.

oy A
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
11  Borrowings
Secured loans (at amortised cost)
Bank overdrafts (secured) 25.66 13.38
25.66 13.38
A. Terms of borrowing:
Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of the borrowing are as follows:
(i) Bank Overdrafts (Secured)
The Company had availed secured working capital facilities with a sanctioned limit of INR 52.5 million from Kotak Mahindra Bank and HDFC bank, the
carrying amount of which aggregates to INR 25.66 million (March 31, 2024 : 13.38 million) with interest ranging from 8.50% - 10.54% These facilities are
repayable on demand and are secured by first charge on all current assets of the Company as primary security. with collateral security consisting of lien on fixed
deposit amounting to INR 35.5 million.
B. Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
[ Particulars Working capital
Balance as on April 1, 2023 (A) -
Additions during the year (B) 13.38
Repayments during the year ( C) -
Closing balance as on 31 March, 2024 (D= A+B+(C) 13.38
Balance as on April 1, 2024 (A) 13.38
Additions during the year (B) 25.66
Repayments during the vear ( C) (13.38)
Closing balance as on 31 March, 2025 (D) 25.66
12 Provisions Asat SR
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Provision for gratuity 1043 10.88
Provision for compensated absences 6.23 6.83
16.66 17.71
Nou-current
Provision for gratuity 22.77 18.38
Provision for compensated absences 9.65 8.84
32.43 27.22

i) Gratuity

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts

recognized in the balance sheet for the Gratuity.

The Company has its defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972. The plan entitles an employee. who has rendered at least five years
of continuous service. to gratuity payable on termination of his employment at the rate of fifieen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof
in excess of six months. based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes its

contributions to a recognized fund in India.

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks. such as longevity risk. interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

The Company obtains an actuarial valuation from an independent actuary measured using projected unit credit method to determine the liability as at the

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss 6.32 422
Amount recognized in other comprehensive income 1.62 4.28
7.94 8.50

Recognized in statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 422 2.38
Interest cost on benefit obligation 2.09 1.84
6.32 +.22

bt



Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(AUl amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees. except share data and as stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in financial assumptions 0.37 L4
Actuarial (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 0.64 (0.90)
Actuarial loss arising from experience adjustments 0.61 4.03
Actuarial loss arising from return on plan assets. excluding amount recognized in net interest expense - 0.01
1.62 4.28
The following table sets out the defined obligation and funded status
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net defined obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation 33.65 29.76
Fair value of plan assets (0.45) (0.50)
Net defined obligation 33.20 29.26
Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 29.76 25.77
Interest cost 214 1.88
Current service cost +4.22 2.38
Benefits paid (4.09) (4.55)
Actuarial (gains) on obligation 1.62 +.28
Balance at the end of the year 33.65 29.76
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the vear 0.50 0.83
Expected return on plan assets 0.04 0.04
Contribution made by the emplover 3.99 +.18
Benefits paid (+.09) (+.55)
Actuarial (losses) on plan assets - -
Balance at the end of the year 0.45 0.50
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Plan assets comprises of :
% of Investment with insurer 100.00 100.00
Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate 6.55% 7.18%
Salany escalation rate 7.39% 7.52%
Aftrition rate 38.93% 38.93%
Maturity profile
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashtlows) 26 .64 Years 2695 Years
Classification
- Current 1043 10.88
- Non-current 2277 18.38

Sensitivities Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31,2024

A. Discount rate Increase Decrease Increase Increase
> Sensitivity level 0.30% 0.50% 0.30% 0.50%
Defined benefit obligation 3332 33.99 29.53 29.99
> Impact on detined bhenefit obligation (0.34) 0.34 (0.23) 0.23

B. Salary escalation rate

> Sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Defined benefit obligation 34.33 32.99 30.23 29.30

> Impact on defined benefit obligation 0.68 (0.66) 0.47 0.46

C. Attrition rate

- Sgnsiti»'ity' level 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
J;Reﬁﬁé](i benetit obligation 33.00 3442 29.43 30.13
> [mpact gn defined benefit obligation (0.65) (0.33) 0.39

0.7 —



Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in miflions of Indian Rupees. except shure duta and as stated)

ii) Compensated absences

The Company's net obligation in respect of Compensated absences is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods: that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial

valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Bifurcation of Present value of Obligation As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current 6.23 6.83
Non- current 9.65 8.84
15.88 15.67
Financial assumptions
Discount rate 6.55% 7.18%
Salary Growth rate 7.59% 7.52%
Leave availment rate 10.00% 10.00%
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ( refer note A below) 145 1.65
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 99.59 86.42
101.04 88.07
Of the above."trade pavable to related parties 6.54 6.06

A. Dues to micro and small enterprises - As per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED' Act)

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro. Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006” ("MSMED Act, 20067) is based on the
information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act. as per the intimation received from them on

request made by the Company.

As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 145 1.65
(b} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of the year - -
(¢) Amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act. 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier bevond the appointed day during the year
{d)y Amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making pavment (which has been paid but B .
bevond the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act. 2006)
{e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the vear
(1) The amount of further interest remaining due and payvable even in the succeeding year. until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise. for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible - -
expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act 2006.
145 1.65
All trade payables are “current”. The Company s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 29.
Ageing for trade payables:
As at March 31, 2025
Qutstanding for following periods from the due date of invoice
Particulars .
“ot due Less than 1 year t-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 years Total
Undisputed dues
iy MSME 1.23 0.22 - - - 144
(i1} Others 22.98 14.60 0.65 0.03 0.44 38.70
Disputed dues -

(i) MSME - - - - - -
(i1} Others - - - - - -
Unbilled dues 60.89 - - - - 60.89
Total 85.10 14.82 0.65 0.03 0.44 101.04

—
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)

(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

.
N

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from the due date of invoice

Particuls

Arfieutars Not due Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed dues

(i) MSME 1.66 - - - - 1.66

(ii) Others 12.65 0.79 0.03 0.22 0.27 13.96
Disputed dues

(i) MSME - - - - - -

(ii) Others - - - - - -
Unbilled dues 7245 - - - - 7245
Total 86.76 0.79 0.03 0.22 0.27 88.07
Notes:
(iii) MSME details have been provided based on the information availabie with the Company in respect of the registration status of its vendors/suppliers.
(iv) The Company's exposure to credit, currency and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 29C.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Employee benetits payable 37.93 36.30
Other payables to related parties (refer note 30) 4.37 2.80
Others 0.79 1.21
43.09 40.31
Note:
(i) The Company's exposure to credit. currency and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 29.
Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 3.47 3.99
Statutory dues payable 20.27 19.08
Provision for contingency sS4 +.56
28.87 27.63

Note:

The Company received an order from the High Court (against the appeal made by the PF department) directing the Company to pay PF on certain allowances to
be considered for PF computation for the salany paid for the period FY 2007-12. Based on the High court order and in compliance with Supreme Court

accrued for interest during the year amounting to Rs. 0.58 million {March 31, 2024: INR 0.34 million.)

Puge intentionally left hlank

judgement in 2019. the Company has created provision amounting for INR 5.14 million. (March 3 1. 2024: INR 4.56 million ). Further. the Company has also

v A
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees. except share duta and as stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
18  Revenue from operations
see accounting policy note 2(1)
Revenue from contracts with customers
Rendering of services 1.036.65 709.45
1,036.65 709.45
(i) Disaggregated revenue information
Sale of Freight and Logistic services 427.73 246,95
Sale of Mailroom management services 238.08 197.24
Sale of Courier services 214.95 203.56
Sale of Business Support Services 94.37 20.42
Sale of Other services 61.52 41.28
Total revenue from operations 1,036.65 709.45
(i) Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 642.67 450.51
Services transferred over time 393.98 258.94
1,036.65 709.45

Revenue from Top 5 customers are INR 420.38 million (40.57%0) and INR 396.42 million (55.88%) of the companies total revenue for the year ended
March 3 1. 2025 and March 3 1. 2024 respectively.
(iv) Trade receivables

The following disclosure provides information about receivables. contract assets and liabilities from
contracts with customers

Trade receivables (refer note 8) 383.05 205.82
Advance trom customers (reter note 15) 3.47 39
Note:

(i) There were no reconciling items of revenue recognised with the contracted price. There was no reduction towards components of variable
consideration during the year ends.

19  Other income

[nterest income on tinancial assets that are measured at amortised cost .
7.06

- on bank deposits 339
- on loan to related parties - 1.70
Miscellaneous Income 1.08 0.54
Income from security deposits - -
Interest income on refund of income tax 0.82 0.78
5.29 10.08
20 Employee benefits expense
Salaries. wages and bonus 293.96 207.88
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note below and note 12) 3155 26.02
Share based payments to employees (refer note 31)
- equity based 1.46 1.93
Staff welfare expenses 2.10 2.47
329.07 238.30

Note : The Company makes contributions. determined as a specitied percentage of employee salaries. in respect of qualilying employees towards
employee provident fund. which is a defined contribution plan. The same is charged to statement of profit and loss as and when it is accrued. The amount
recognized as expense towards such provident fund contribution aggregated to Rs. 20.93 million (March 31. 2024: Rs. 17.56 million).

21  Finance costs
Interest expense on financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss
- Interest on borrowings
- Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 4 (b)
Other borrowing costs

’/ ) y:
< c e /




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data und us stated)

22

23

24

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment (refer note 3(a)) 1.75 1.68
Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 4ia)) 14.95 11.48
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 3(b)) 041 0.54
17.11 13.70
Clearing and freight forwarding charges
Transportation costs 404.66 22735
404.66 227.35
*Transportation costs primarily include INR 399.75 Million (226.89: March 31. 2024) towards providing freight and logistics services.
Other expenses
Postage and courier charges 148 41 12940
Communication 0.60 0.58
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 27) 248 295
insurance 3.74 3.05
Legal and professional costs 6.39 6.91
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment 0.01 0.20
Power and fuel 116 .97
Printing and stationery 10.21 3.3
Qutsourcing charges 21.28 -
Rent 1.44 1.54
Repairs and maintenance - others 1.85 1.43
Rates and taxes 0.73 233
Travelling and conveyance 3.91 425
Payment to Audit fee (refer note below) 1.05 0.84
Provision / (reversal) for expected credit loss of trade receivables 238 347
Bad debts written off 1.05 -
Office Expenses 7.30 5.83
Miscellaneous expenses 7.26 428
221.24 171.39
Note:
Auditor's remuneration
As auditor
Statutory Audit 1.00 0.80
Tax Audit - -
Other services -
Reimbursement of expenses 0.05 0.04
1.05 0.84

——



Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(A1l amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees. except share data and as stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
25 Earnings per share (EPS)
Profit for the vear A 46.84 3991
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic EPS B 46,84 3991
Add: Employee stock option C - -
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for diluted EPS D=A+C 46.84 3991
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding as at reporting date for basic EPS E 24,845 24845
Add: Potential equity shares F - -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding as at reporting date for diluted EPS G=E+F 24845 24.845
Basie earnings per equity share (in Rs. ) H=B/E 1,885.29 1,606.52
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) [=D/G 1,885.29 1,606.52

26

(1)

(i)
(111)
(iv)

(vi)

{vii)

(v1ii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)
(x11)

(xin)

27

Other statutory information

The Company does not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not revalued its property. plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the current or previous vear.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any persons or entities. including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf ot the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies.

The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities. including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee. security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneticiaries.

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961).

The Company does not have any charges or satistaction which is vet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond statutory period.

The Company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956

The Company does not have any scheme of arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act. 2013.

The company does not have any term loans during the year. Further, short term loans availed have not been utilised for long term purposes by the Company.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulters by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets but 1s not required to file quarterly returns or statements of current assets for the
sanctioned working capital loans with banks or financial institutions.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR)
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear 248 2.90
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the vear 2.48 2.9
¢) Amount spent during the year (in cash).
(1) Construction / acquisition of asset -
(11) On purposes other than (1) above 2.20 295
2.20 2.95

d) Shortfall at the end of the vear 0.02
e) Total of previous vears shorttall -

t) Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable

g) Details of related party transactions Not applicable Not applicable

h) Details of excess amount spent by the company {0.26)

Ensuring Ensuring
environmental environmental
sustainability and sustainability and

Promotion of health Promotion of health and

i) Nature of CSR activities undertaken by the company

and education education
1) The movements in the provision for unspent CSR {relating to other than ongoing project) 1s as tollows.
Opening balance (0 26) 0.2
Amount required to be spent during the vear 2.48 2.90
Amoung spent during the vear 220 295
A -‘(‘ ios g,b\hnce( Refer note below) 0.02 (0.26)
<, /’* 3
Note: '} A

Subﬁequent to the vear end. the Company has transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of other than ongoing pro]ects g 1%I\RES Fund (Fund specified in
Schedule VIfy toithe Act on May 08. 2025

: )y 5. b



Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(A1l amounts are in millions ol Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

28 Ratios as per the schedule Il requirements:

a) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current assets 452.96 334.44

Current liabilities 225.54 197.14

Ratio 2.01 1.70

% change from previous vear 18.4%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not Applicable

b) Debt-Equity Ratio = Total debt divided by total equity where total debt represents aggregate of current and non-current borrowings

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total debt 64.28 49.84

Total equity 249.77 204.14

Ratio 0.26 0.24

% change from previous year 5.4%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not Applicable

¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by total interest and principal repayments

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Earnings available for debt services (refer note | below) 69.63 59.65

Total interest and principal repayments (refer note 2 below) 12.40 9.40

Ratio 5.61 6.35

% change from previous vear -11.5%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not Applicable

Note:

1. Earnings available for debt services = Profit after tax + Depreciation and amortization expense + Finance cost

2. Total interest and principal repayments = Interest payment on borrowings + Principal repayments (Term loan related) + Lease payments

d) Return on Equity ratio = Profit after tax divided by average shareholder's equity

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net Profit after tax 46.84 39.91

Shareholder's equity (refer note below) 249.77 204.14

Ratio 18.75% 19.55%
% change from previous vear -+.1%

Reason for change more than 25% Not Applicable

¢) Trade receivables turnover ratio = Sales divided by average trade receivables

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Turnover (refer note 1 below) 1.036.65 709.45

Average trade receivables (refer note 2 below) 29443 161.83

Ratio 3.52 +4.38

% change from previous vear -19.7%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not Applicable

Note:
1. Turnover represents revenue from operations

2. Average trade receivables = (Total trade receivables as at beginning of respective year + total trade receivables as at end of respective vear) divided by 2

e




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

f) Trade payables turnover ratio = Purchases divided by average trade payables

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchases (refer note 1 below) 771.92 395.07
Average trade payables (refer note 2 below) 94.56 53:55
Ratio 8.16 7.38
% change from previous vear 10.6%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable

Note:
1. Purchases represents other expenses.

2. Average trade payables = (Total trade pavables as at beginning of respective year + Total trade pavables as at end of respective year) divided by 2

g) Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue from operations divided by workings capital

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 1.036.65 709.45
Working capital (refer note below) 22742 137.30
Ratio 4.56 5.17
% change from previous vear -11.8%

Reason tor change more than 25% : Not Applicable

Note: Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

h) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Revenue from operations

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net profit after tax 46.84 3991
Revenue from operations 1.036.65 709.45
Ratio 4.52% 5.63%
% change from previous vear -19.7%

Reason for change more than 23% Not Applicable

i) Return on capital employed / investments = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by capital employed

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Earnings before interest and taxes (refer note 1 below) 86.97 82.49
Capital emploved (refer note 2 below) 314.06 253.98
Ratio 27.69% 32.48%
% change from previous year -14.7%

Reason for change more than 23% : Not applicable

Note:

1. EBIT = Profit before taxes + tinance cost

2. Capital employed = Total equity + Total debt + Deferred tax liabilities + Lease habilities

j) Return on investments = [ncome generated from invested funds divided by Average invested funds in treasury investments

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income generated from invested funds 339 7.06
Invested funds in treasury investments 54.80 93.80
Ratio 6.18% 7.53%
% change from previous year -17.9%

Reason for change more than 25% : Not applicable

L
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

29 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

C Financial risk management

a

b

)

~—

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Market risk

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

Financial risk management framework

The Companys board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of
directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company’s senior
management advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company.

The Company's risk management policies established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company. through establishment of standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Companys board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the C ompany’s risk management policies and procedures. and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The board of directors are assisted in its oversight role by internal audit.
Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the board of directors.
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations. The Companys principal financial assets include trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and balances with banks that is derived
directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the company.

The sources of risks which the company is exposed to and their management is given below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a
financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates. commodity prices and other market changes that affect
market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including deposits. foreign currency receivables.
payables and borrowings. The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk, interest rate risk and
certain other price risks. which arise from operating activities.

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Companys exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Companys debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost. The Company
manages its interest rate risk by having portfolio of variable rate borrowings. The Company has approximately Rs. Nil (March 31. 2024: Nil) of its borrowings at a
fixed rate of interest.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals. establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of
incurred losses in respect of the Company’s trade receivables and other financial assets. Further. none of the customers contributes to more than 10% of the
Company's total revenues as continuous efforts are made in expanding its customer base. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and reviewed by
the Management periodically.




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(ANl amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

29 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
b) Credit risk (continued)

The carrving amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Carrying Amount

. As at As at
Particulars Reference March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Trade receivables (i) 383.05 205.82
Cash and cash equivalents (ii) 0.13 0.32
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (ii) 10.00 -
Deposits with banks with original maturity more than 12 months (i1) 44.80 93.80
Interest accrued (i) 1.00 228
Security deposits (iv) 9.04 8.78
Other deposits (iv) - 0.01
Total 448.03 311.01

(i) Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However. management also considers the factors that
may influence the credit risk of its customer base. including the default risk associated with the industry. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped
according to their credit characteristics, including end-user customers. their geographic location. industry. trading history with the customer groups and existence of
previous financial difficulties as applicable. With respect to other financial assets. the Company does not expect any credit risk against such assets except as already
assessed.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical
trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any signiticant credit losses. The Company has adopted a practical measure of computing the expected
credit loss altowance for trade receivable and other financial assets, which comprise large number of small balances. based on a provision matrix. The provision
matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information including consideration for increased likelihood of credit
risk. Further. the Company also makes an allowance for doubtful debts on a case o case basis.

Exposure to eredit risk:

The Company’s always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss (ECL). The Company has used a
practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix under simptified approach. The provision
matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing
of the days the receivables are due. Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience and current tacts available in relation to pattern of
collection thereof. the credit risk for these trade receivables is considered low.

The Company’s allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on the historic trend of receivables movement between the aging buckets. The loss rates are
calculated based on the simple average of the trend in receivable ageing.
As at March 31, 2025

Aging Period Logistics Solutions
Not due 1.75% 0.62%
0-90 days 4.27% 0.79%
90-180 days 1.45% 3.17%
180-270 days 12.63% 26.57%
270-360 days 50.00% 69.60%
More than 360 davs 100.00% 100.00%

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Less than | year 391.29 209.50
More than | year 0.93 3.12
Sub-total 392.22 212.62
Less: Loss allowance in accordance with expected credit loss model (9.17) (6.79)
Total 383.05 205.82

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks including interest accrued and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances are deposited with credit worthy banks and hence does not expect any loss from non-performance by these counter-parties.

(iii) Others

This comprises of security deposits and other financial assets on which the Company does not expect any loss from non-performance of these counter-parties.




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees. except share data and as stated)

29 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is detined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk
management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. The Company’s treasury team is responsible for liquidity. funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies
related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a current ratio with an optimal mix of short term loans and long term loans. The Company assessed the concentration of
risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within
12 months and the management is confident that it can roll over its debt with existing lenders. The Board of Directors périodical]) reviews the Company's business
requirements vis-a-vis the source of funding.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

Carrying Total cash Less than More than
Particulars amount outflows 1 vear 1 vear
As at March 31, 2025
Borrowings* 25.66 25.66 25.66 -
Lease liabilities 38.62 38.62 16.56 22.07
Trade payables 101.04 101.04 101.04 -
Employee benefits payable 37.93 37.93 37.93 -
Other payables to related parties 437 4.37 +.37 -
Others 0.79 0.79 0.79 -
Total 208.41 208.41 186.35 22.07
As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings* 13.38 13.38 13.38 -
Lease liabilities 36.46 36.46 10.04 26.42
Trade payables 88.07 88.07 88.07 -
Employee benefits payable 36.30 36.30 36.30 -
Other payables to related parties 2.80 2.80 2.80 -
Others 1.21 1.21 1.21 -
Total 178.22 178.22 151.80 26.42

*excluding contractual interest payments

D Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company does not have any tinancial instruments that are offset or are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and other similar agreements

<This space has been left blank intentionalh >




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

30 Related party disclosures

Related Parties :
(I) Where control exists:

(A) Holding company
(1) Updater Services Limited

(B) Fellow subsidiaries
(1) Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited
(2) Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited
(3) Matrix Business Services India Private Limited
(4) Washroom Hygiene Concept Private Limited

(5) Denave India Private Limited

(11) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
(A) Managing Director / Executive Directors / Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary/ Manager

(1) Mr. P.D.Rajan. Managing Director
(2) Mr. Ameerbasha J. Additional Director (from December 15, 2023)
(3) Mr. Jigyasa Sharma. Additional Director (from March 15, 2024)

(B) Non-executive directors

(1) Mr. Raghunandha Tangirala

(111 Transactions with related parties referred in (I) and (II) above, in the ordinar) course of business:

Particul Year ended Year ended
artietfars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Sale of services
Updater Services Limited 0.20 0.00
Denave Services Private Limited - 8.09
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited 7.92 5.7
Wash room Hygeine Concepts Private Limited 3.12 3.42
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited 0.60 0.74
Purchases
Updater Services Limited 0.12 5.18
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited 0.26 0.04
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited - 0.02
Wash room Hygeine Concepts Private Limited 0.01 0.01
Other Expenses
Updater Services Limited 427 1.47
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited 0.00 -
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited 0.18 0.02
Wash room Hygeine Concepts Private Limited 0.01 0.01
Loan given
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited - 10.00
Interest income
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited - 1.70
Dividend Paid
Updater Services Limited - 103 .85
less : dividend payables adjusted towards assignment of loan advanced to - (50.00)
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited
Net dividend paid to Updater Services Limited - 53.85
Latha Krishna Kumar - 32.80
Employee Stock Option Expense
Updater:Services Limited 1.46 1.93
P D Rajan - -
Managerial remuneration
P D Rajan ; - 3.21



Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees. except share data and as stated)

30 Related party disclosures (continued)

Qutstanding balances

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Due to the Company
Updater Services Limited 0.22 0.00
Denave Services Private Limited - 0.97
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited 1.33 .85
Wash room Hygeine Concepts Private Limited 0.02 0.47
Matrix Business Services [ndia Private Limited 0.09 0.17
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited - -
Due by the Company
Updater Services Limited 6.54 6.05
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited 0.00 0.01
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited - 0.00
Wash room Hygeine Concepts Private Limited - -
P D Rajan - -

(IV) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are at arm's length and all the outstanding balances are unsecured.

< This space has been left blank intentionally j w
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, except share data and as stated)

31 Share-based payments

Employee Stock Option Plan 2022

The Company is covered under the Employee Stock Option Schemes "Updater Employee Stock Option Plan 2022" (“ESOP 20227 or “Plan™) which was
approved by the shareholders of Updater Services Limited (Holding company) on December 3. 2022, The primary objective of the above schemes is to
reward certain employees of holding Company and its subsidiaries for their association. dedication and contribution to the goals of the Company.

Under the Scheme. 90.000 options were granted to the certain employees at an exercise price of ¥ 300 in multiple tranches. The options issued under the
plan has a term of 1-4 years as provided in the stock options grant letter and vest based on the tenure served by such employees.

The Holding Company has also granted certain options during the year to such employees which vest based on non-market linked performance conditions
related to the Company over a 4 year period. which is stipulated in the respective grant letters issued to the employees. The performance condition for FY
2022-23 (Tranche 1) has been communicated to respective employees. while for Tranches 2-4, these will be communicated in future. Further. the Plan also
provides ability for the employee to cateh up any unvested options for a particular Tranche in the next year provided the performance conditions specified
for the next financial year are achieved.

When excrcisable. each option is convertible into one equity share of Face value of Rs.10/- each tully paid up.

Management has estimated and also considered future projections in determining the number of options expected to be vested and has accounted for the
The expense recognised for share options during the year ended March 31, 2025 is INR 1.46 [March 31 2024: INR 1.93]. This amount will be paid by

the Company to its holding Company in connection with the ESOP plan.

A. Details of ESOP 2022

Tenure Based Performance based

Name of the scheme - ESOP 2022 Tranche -T I Tranche -E |
Date of grant 16-Dec-22 16-Dec-22
Number granted 44994 45.006
Exercise price (in INR) 300 300
Vesting period 4 Years Graded 4 Years Graded
Vesting Vesting

. .. Performance

Vesting Condition Service Condition - irion - EBITDA
Tenure based
based

Method of Settlement Equity-Settled Equity-Settled
Method of Accounting Fair Value Fair Value

Method of valuation

B. Movement in the options granted to employees

Black Scholes Model Black Scholes Model

Number of options

Weighted Average Exercise Price

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 90,000 - 300 -
Options granted during the vear - 90.000 - 300
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options forfeited during the vear - - - -
Options expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 90,000 90,000 300 300
Exercisable at the end of the year 24.749 20.251 - -
C. Fair value of options granted
The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weizhted averape fair value considerine following inputs:
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Exercise price (INR) 300 300
Expected volatility 41.50% 41.50%
Expected dividend yield (o) 0% 0°%
Risk free interest rates 7.43% 743%
-As on grant date :16-12-2022 2-3.5 Years 2-35 Years
Weighted average share price 29345 293.45
Fair Value of the Option as on Grant date Rs.82.59-Rs.113.83 Rs.82.59-Rs.113.83

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative ot future

- tFend_éf\wm‘ch may not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees. except shuare data and s stated)

32 Contingencies and commitments
There are no open commitments for the Company or contingent liabilitics for the Company as at March 31. 2025 or in the previous years.

33 Segment information
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chiet operating
decision maker. in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Company is engaged in mailroom management. courier services. freight and
logistics and associated services and the operation primarily caters to the domestic market. The Cheif Operating officer of the company has been identified as being
the chief operating decision maker (CODM) evaluates the company's performance. allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of
the company as 2 different segments- Logistics and Solutions. Thercfore, there are 2 reportable segments for the company as per the requirement of Ind-AS 108
"Operating Segments”.

Revenue in the geographical information considered for disclosures are as follows:

Segment information for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Logistics Solutions Unallocated Total
Segment Revenue 427.73 608.92 - 1.036.64
Less: Segment Cost 40544 478.65 §7.98 972.08
Less: Inter-sezment - = - -
Segment result 22.28 130.27 (87.98) 64.57
Finance Cost - - (5.67) (3.67)
Other Income - - 5.29 5.29
Profit before tax 22.28 130.27 (77.02) 64.19
Tax Expense - - 17.35 | 17.35
Profit After tax 22.28 130.27 (94.37)| 46.84
Segment assets 262.96 134.30 | 138.89 536.15
Segment Liabilities 5223 48.81 185.34 286.38
Capital Expenditure - - 1.42 1.42
Segment information for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars = Logisties | Solutions U nallocated Total
Segment Revenue 246.95 462.50 - 709.45
Less: Segment Cost 230.84 330.27 89.63 630.74
Less: Inter-segment | - - - -
Seiment result 16.11 132.23 | (89.63) 58.71
Finance Cost - - (5.84) (5.84)
Other Income - - 10.08 10.08
Profit before tax 16.11 132.23 (73.71) 62.95
Tax Expense - - 23.04 23.04
Profit After tax 16.11 132,23 (96.75) 39.91
Segment assets 108.64 102.04 ] 244.24 | 454.92
Segment Liabilities l 52.84 2149 | 176.45 | 250.78
Capital Expenditure | - - | 2.95 | 2.95

34 Events after the reporting period
There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date of these financial statements.

The notes from 1 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statements
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